Lesson 6

Relative clauses

Relative clauses are clauses the restrict the range of a noun. In this sense relative clauses are like adjectives. 

	O:nihnamak nokal yo: ista:k.
	I sold my white house (lit., ‘My house that is white’)

	cf. Ista:k nokal.
	My house is white.


That the the predicate adjective is first, followed by the subject.

Examples of relative clauses

Subject:

	O:nihmo:tlak misto:n yo: o:tsikwi:n i:pan tepa:ntli.
	I threw a rock at the cat that jumped on the wall. 

	cf. Misto:n o:tsikwi:n i:pan tepa:ntli.
	The cat jumped up on the wall.


	Ne:chpale:wi:s siwa:tl yo: tawa mitspale:wia.
	The woman that help you will help me.

	cf. Mitspale:wia siwa:tl.
	The woman helps you.


Object :

	O:nihmo:tlak misto:n yo: ya:lwa o:tikitak.
	I threw a rock at the cat that you saw yesterday.

	cf. Ya:lwa o:tikitak misto:n.
	Yesterday you saw a/the cat.


	O:nihko:w tlapextli yo:n o:kî:chi:w Juan.  
	I bought the bed that Juan made.

	Juan o:kî:chi:w tlapextli.
	Juan made the bed.


Primary object:

	O:nihpale:wih siwa:tl yo: o:tihma:k tomi:n.  
	I bought the bed that Juan made.

	O:tihma:k siwa:tl tomi:n.
	Juan made the bed.


Secondary object:

	O:nihkwah tlakwahli yo:n ya:lwa o:tihma:k nona:n.  
	I ate the food that yesterday you gave to my mother.

	O:tihma:k nona:n tlakwahli.
	You gave my mother food.


Locative/oblique:

	Nikwelita tlapextli yo: i:pan tikochi.  
	I like the bed on which you sleep.

	Tikochi i:pan tlapextli.
	You gave my mother food.


	Nihpale:w:s tla:katl yo: i:wa:n o:tiah.
	I will help the man with whom you went.

	O:tiah i:wa:n tla:katl.
	You gave my mother food.


Possessor:

Apparently possessors are not relativized even though the possessor of a relational noun can be relativized (see preceding example).

The dog whose teeth are long bit me.

*Chichi yo: i:tlan weyak o:ne:chkwah.

Chichi yo: kipia i:tlan weyak, o:ne:chkwah.

I don’t like the woman whose house is big.

*Xnikwelita siwa:tl yo: i:kal we:i.

Xnikwelita siwa:tl yo: kipia i:kal we:i

I like the girl whose skirt is long.

*Nikwelita ichpo:xtli yo: i:kwe: weyak.

Nikwelita ichpo:xtli yo: kwe:weyak (Lit. ‘I like the long-skirted girl’)

I will help the man whose arms are long.

*Nihpale:wi:s tla:katl yo: i:ma:wa:n we:weyakeh.

Nihpale:wi:s tla:katl yo: ma:we:weyak.

But cf.

	Nihtlati:s tlapextli yo: i:pan o:koch misto:n.
	I will burn the bed that the cat slept on.

	I:pan tlapextli o:koch misto:n. 
	You gave my mother food.


This suggests that the relational nouns (i.e., the possessors of) are not treated the same as other nouns (i.e., the possessors of).

Other relative clauses:

	Ni:minwelita chichimeh yo: wewe:imeh.
	I like big dogs.

	Nihkowas se: chichi yo: ista:k.*
	I will buy a white dog.

	Tiwe:itla:kameh.
	We are big men.

	Tiwà:wakapantla:kameh
	We are tall men.

	Nihneki se: kahli yo: we:i*
	I want a big house.


* Jeremías Cabrera thinks that one might be able to say ?Nihkowas se: chichi ista:k but is not sure. He also accepted Nihneki se: kahli we:i or Nihneki se: we:i kahli.

Headless relative clauses:

	Xo:nikitak yo:n ya:lwa o:wa:hlah.
	I didn’t see who came yesterday (the one who came yesterday).


	Xniki:xmatiya yo: o:wa:hlah.
	I didn’t know the person who came yesterday.


	Nihpale:wi:s ma:si sa: a:kino:n yèkós.
	I will help whoever comes.


	Nihkwa:s yo: o:ne:chma:keh 
	I will eat what they gave me.

	Nihkwa:s tli:n o:ne:chma:keh.
	

	Nihkwa:s yo: tli:n o:ne:chma:keh.
	


	Nikwelita ka:mpa ticha:nti.
	I like (the place) where you live.

	cf. Nikwelita kahli yo: ka:mpa ticha:nti.
	I like the house where you live.


Note use with complement

	Xnihmati a:kino:n ne:chpale:wi:s.
	I don’t know who will help me.


	Xnikwelita tli:n o:kichi:w Juan.
	I don’t like what Juan did.
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